
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk

 
 

Licensing 
Sub -Committee 

 
 
 

Councillor D A Hammock 
Councillor D E Hunnisett 
Councillor T A Maddison 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 
 

Wednesday 13 July 2022 
 

at 2.30 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 
 

 
Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services) 

(5 July 2022) 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 

 



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 13 July 2022 
 
  
1. Election of Chairman   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 

terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services.  
 

 

 
4. Minutes of Previous Sub-Committees held on 2 and 30 July 2020  (Pages 1 - 

12)  
5. Urgent Items   
 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 

urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

 
6. Rules of Procedure  (Pages 13 - 

26)  
7. APPLICATION BY DARTFORD SOCIAL CLUB LTD FOR A 

VARIATION TO THE CLUB PREMISES CERTIFCATE HELD AT 59 
LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD, KENT DA1 1HP  

(Pages 27 - 
72) 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on Thursday 2 July 
2020 at 1.30 pm 

 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL 
MEMBER 
 

Councillor C S McLean 
Councillor J Burrell 
Councillor T A Maddison 
 
Councillor E Ben Moussa 
 

 
DARTFORD 
BOROUGH 
COUNCIL 
OFFICERS:- 

Mrs J Philpott, Licensing Manager; Ms Caroline Hillman, 
Licensing Officer; Sarah Cotton, Solicitor; Mr A Twyman, 
Democratic Services Manager; Mr N Murphy, Democratic 
Services Officer. 

 
APPLICANT  

 
 

8. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
Councillor McLean was proposed, seconded and duly elected Chairman of 
the meeting. 
 

9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received from Members of the sub – 
committee nor from the Alternative Member. 
 

11. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman reported that there were no urgent matters for the sub 
Committee to consider. 
 

12. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
The Chairman introduced the Members present and called upon others 
present to identify themselves. He then explained to the parties that the Sub-
Committee intended to follow the procedure detailed in the Licensing Sub-
Committee Rules of Procedure, circulated as item 5 to the agenda. 
 
The Chairman also explained the role of the Additional Member who would 
not participate in the meeting unless a Member of the sub - Committee were 
to withdraw due to a failure in the IT equipment. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 2 JULY 2020 
 

2

13. APPLICATION BY MR FAKHARINIA BEHROUZ FOR A VARIATION TO 
THE PREMISES LICENCE HELD BY M & B NEWSAGENTS, 56 HIGH 
STREET, DARTFORD, KENT. DA1 1DE  
 
 
The Council’s Licensing Manager introduced her report and explained that Mr 
Behrouz (the Applicant) had applied for a variation of the Premises Licence 
for M & B Newsagents, 56 High Street Dartford Kent DA1 1ED, which is 
situated in Dartford Town Centre and is licensed to sell alcohol for 
consumption off premises only within specified hours. 
 
The Applicant had originally applied to vary the hours for the sale and supply 
of alcohol - Monday to Sunday 07.00 to midnight, but had agreed, at the 
suggestion of Kent Police, to a number of additional conditions and the 
reduction of the specified hours to Monday to Sunday 07.00 to 23.00, as 
detailed in the Licensing Officer’s report. 
 
It was noted that the consultation on the proposed variation had not elicited 
any objections from Responsible Authorities but Councillor Rosanna Currans 
(Dartford Ward Councillor, and Portfolio holder for High Street Revival and 
Town Centre) had registered an objection based on the licensing objectives of 
the prevention of “Crime and Disorder” and “Public Nuisance.” 
 
The Chairman invited the Applicant to explain the application and reasons for 
its submission. At this point, it became obvious that the Applicant had a 
limited command of English, and that it would not be appropriate to continue 
with the meeting without assistance for the Applicant. 
 
Accordingly, the Chairman suspended the meeting, asked the Licensing 
Manager to liaise with the Applicant to arrange for an interpreter, and agreed 
with Members that the meeting re - convene at 2.30pm. 
 
At 2.33pm the meeting re - convened and the Applicant was assisted by an 
interpreter. 
 
It was explained that the Applicant had recently acquired the Premises, and 
that he was attempting to expand the business of an already busy shop.  This 
would include expanding the stock carried, re - vitalising the interior of the 
premises and extending the opening hours for the sale of alcohol. 
 
The Sub - Committee posed a number of questions of the Applicant, through 
his interpreter. Members sought clarification on the standards of management 
and the Applicant’s understanding respectively, of his responsibilities to 
manage a licensed premises and good business practices, to achieve the 
licensing objectives.  The Applicant was questioned about his training in his 
responsibilities to manage a licensed premises and good business practices. 
The Applicant confirmed that he would be operating the Licensed Premises 
for the majority of the time. 
 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 2 JULY 2020 
 

3

At the conclusion of questions, the Chairman invited Councillor Currans to 
explain her opposition to the application. 
 
Councillor Currans explained that in her role as Portfolio holder for High Street 
Revival and Town Centre, she was aware of numerous cases where late night 
disturbances caused by drunkenness had merited action by Kent Police. 
 
She reported that considerable resources were being devoted to make the 
Town Centre a more pleasant place and improve the night time experience for 
visitors. 
 
However, it was apparent that young people, intending to visit clubs and 
venues in the Town Centre, were purchasing and drinking cheap alcohol from 
local shops in advance of club entrance, in order to avoid high club prices. 
 
This practice was leading to many cases of drunken behaviour by young 
people and was unacceptable. 
 
Councillor Currans felt that this variation would worsen the current situation 
relating to street drinking thus making the Town Centre an unpleasant place 
to visit. 
 
At the conclusion of questioning, the Applicant and Councillor Currans were 
invited to make closing statements, but declined the invitation. 
 
The Sub – Committee then withdrew in closed session to consider its 
decision. 
 
Having considered the evidence presented, national guidance and the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, in particular section 2.7 ‘The 
Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of 
the licensed Premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the 
adoption of best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures 
for the achievement of all the Licensing Objectives’, the Sub -Committee 
returned to the meeting and  
 
RESOLVED that the 
  
Application for the Variation of the Premises Licence held by Mr Fakharinia 
Behrouz, M & B Newsagents 56 High Street, Dartford, Kent DA1 1DE be 
refused. 
 
 
Reasons for the Decision: 
 
1. The Sub – Committee did not have confidence that the Applicant 
demonstrated sufficient knowledge and experience to manage the Premises, 
and lacked an understanding of good business practices to run the Premises.  
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 2 JULY 2020 
 

4

2. The Applicant lacked basic training in operating licensed premises, had 
limited knowledge of the licensing objectives and seemed unaware of some of 
the existing conditions of the Premises Licence. 
 
3. The Applicant required relevant training and insufficient information 
was provided to the Sub Committee on the proposed operation of the 
Premises. 
 
4. Having considered the prevalence for’ pre-loading’, the Sub-Committee 
had concerns about the correlation between the ‘pre-loading’ of alcohol and 
alcohol-related crime and disorder and public nuisance in the Town Centre.   
 
For the reasons detailed in paras. (1) to (4) above, there was a significant risk: 
 

(a) of the licensing objectives relating to the prevention of crime and 
disorder and the prevention of public nuisance not being met; 

(b) of non-compliance with the licensing conditions; 
(c) of non-implementation of adequate measures to prevent public 

nuisance arising from customers of the Premises ‘pre-loading’. 
 

It was not felt that conditions would meet the Sub-Committee’s concerns. The 
Sub-Committee were not satisfied that appropriate conditions would be 
complied with. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered that the refusal of the application to vary the 
Premises Licence was appropriate and proportionate to promote the licensing 
objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and public nuisance. 
 
The Applicant is hereby notified that he may appeal against this decision to a 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of notification of this 
Decision.  
 
Informative 
The Applicant may wish to consider formal licensing training, and the use of 
Temporary Event Notices (TENs) under Part 5 of the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 16 05pm 
 
 Councillor Calvin McLean 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 

Page 4Agenda Item 4



1

CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on Thursday 30 July 
2020 at 1.30 pm 

 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
ALSO 
PRESENT 
 
 
 

 
Councillor C S McLean 
Councillor E H Ben Moussa 
Councillor R J Wells 
 
Councillor T Maddison (Additional Member) 
 
Councillor Rosanna Currans (Objector); PC Daniel Hunt, (Kent Police 
Service); Mrs Julie Short, (DBC Environmental Health Service); Mrs 
Yvonne Rickards, (Applicant); Sarah Cotton (Solicitor); Marie Kelly 
Stone; (Borough Solicitor); Joanne Philpott, (Licensing Manager); 
Caroline Hillman, (Licensing Officer); Neil Murphy, (Committee Co 
ordinator) 

 
 

14. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
Councillor McLean was proposed, seconded and duly elected Chairman of 
the meeting. 
 

15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Matthew Davies and 
from Mr Mark Salisbury. 
 

16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received from sub - Committee 
Members nor from the Additional Member, Councillor Maddison.   
 

17. URGENT ITEMS  
 
It was reported that there were no urgent items for the sub - Committee to 
consider. 
 

18. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
The Chairman introduced Members present and called upon others present to 
identify themselves.  He then explained to the parties that the Sub-Committee 
intended to follow the procedure detailed in the revised Licensing Sub-
Committee Rules of Procedure, which had been circulated as a replacement 
for item 5 to the agenda. 
 
He also explained the role of the Additional Member who would not participate 
in the meeting unless a Member of the sub Committee were to withdraw due 
to a failure in the IT Equipment. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

 
19. APPLICATION BY MRS YVONNE RICKARDS FOR A VARIATION TO THE 

PREMISES LICENCE HELD BY WIG & GOWN, SPITAL STREET, 
DARTFORD, KENT DA1 1DX  
 
The Council’s Licensing Manager introduced her report and explained that 
Mrs Rickards (the Applicant) had applied for a variation of the Premises 
Licence, under section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the Wig and Gown 
Public House, Spital Street, Dartford Kent, DA1, which is situated in Dartford 
Town Centre.  
 
The following variations to the conditions of the current Premises Licence 
were proposed: 
 
To delete the following conditions: 

 

a. When the premises are open on Thursday, Friday and Saturdays and Bank 
Holidays there will be no admission or re-admission after 00:00 hours. 
 

b. The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 21:00 Sunday to Thursday, 
nor after 22:30 on Fridays, Saturdays, Bank Holidays or Christmas Eve. 
 

c. Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and tipped 
into refuse and recycling bins between 21:00 and 08:00.  Kitchen waste may 
be emptied until 21:30. Waste and recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and 
large enough to hold all waste generated by the premises. 

 
d. When the premises are open between 20:00hrs till close on Thursday, Friday 

and Saturdays and Bank Holidays a minimum of 4 SIA door supervisors must 
be present at the customer entrance and exit of the premises. 
 

and 
 
to add: 

 
 When the premises are open on Friday and Saturdays and Bank Holidays 

there will be no admission or re-admission after 01:45 hours. 
 

 The rear garden shall not be used by patrons after 00:00 Sunday to Saturday, 
Bank Holidays or Christmas Eve. The garden in now [sic] an enclosed area 
which will limit sound escaping. 
  

 Bottles and other waste should not be removed from the premises and tipped 
into refuse and recycling bins between 00:00 and 08:00.  Kitchen waste may 
be emptied until 00:30. Waste and recycling bins utilised shall be lidded and 
large enough to hold all waste generated by the premises. 
 

 When the premises are open between 20:00 hrs till close on Friday and 
Saturdays and Sundays prior to Bank Holidays a minimum of 3 SIA door 
supervisors must be present at the customer entrance and exit of the 
premises. 

 

Page 6Agenda Item 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020 
 

3

It was noted that the consultation on the proposed variations had elicited 
objections from respectively, Kent Police and Dartford Borough Council’s 
Environmental Health as Responsible Authorities and from Councillor 
Rosanna Currans (Dartford Ward Councillor and Portfolio holder for High 
Street Revival and Town Centre), as an interested party. 
 
The Chairman drew the written submissions made by the Applicant to the 
attention of the Sub Committee and asked the Applicant if she had anything 
further to add.   
 
The Applicant: 
 
(a) stressed that the pub was a family run establishment and that there had 

been no occasions where Police presence had been required; 
(b) wished to have the flexibility to choose the night on which to provide an 

indoor platform for live bands and musicians.  Outdoor music would be 
purely acoustic; 

(c) wished to reduce the number of SIA door supervisors from 4 to 3 - to 
reduce the risk of being overstaffed on less busy nights; 

(d) considered that the condition on waste removal was not proportionate. 
 
The Sub - Committee posed a number of questions of the Applicant.  
Members sought clarification on the reasons for the proposed variations, 
standards of management and the Applicant’s understanding respectively, of 
her responsibilities to manage a licensed premises and good business 
practices, to achieve the licensing objectives.   
 
The Chairman then invited Constable Daniel Hunt representing Kent Police, to 
explain the objections raised by the Police to the proposed variations. 
 
Constable Hunt explained that prior to the Applicant taking over the 
management of the Premises in 2018 and the subsequent grant of a 
Premises Licence in May 2018, the Police had been involved with a number 
of anti-social behaviour issues at the Premises. 
 
Constable Hunt was of the view that the May 2018 licensing conditions had 
proved effective in addressing the licensing objectives.  
 
The Sub - Committee posed a number of questions of Constable Hunt relating 
to the Police’s objections. 
 
Constable Hunt explained: 
 

that the variation seeking to extend the ‘no admission or no re-admission’- 
terminal hours [from 00:00 hours] to 01:45 on Fridays, Saturdays and 
Bank Holidays would pose a serious risk to the licensing objectives of 
crime and disorder and public nuisance, through alcohol fuelled anti-social 
behaviour etc. A variation to this condition would not be supported by the 
Police.  

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

that live music on Fridays, Saturdays and Bank Holidays alters the 
dynamics of a licensed premises from a traditional pub into a nightclub, 
making the premises attractive to patrons wanting a livelier night out. 

 
The proposal to reduce the number of door supervisors, from 4 to 3 on 
live music nights was concerning.  SIA door supervisors are needed to 
manage the front door, inside the venue, the rear garden, and the upstairs 
toilets and control entry to the premises etc. Door supervisors play a 
central role in dealing with anti-social behaviour in the night time 
economy.  The lack of adequate numbers of SIA door supervisors to 
manage and/or control anti-social behaviour such as alcohol fuelled, drug 
and knife related incidences would pose a serious risk to the licensing 
objectives of crime and disorder and public nuisance.  
 
The Police suggested a condition imposing a requirement on the 
Applicant to undertake a risk assessment for any events and where 
deemed appropriate, to employ a minimum of 4 door supervisors. 

 
The Chairman invited Mrs Julie Short, Principal Environmental Health Officer 
of Dartford Borough Council, to explain objections raised to the proposed 
variation to extend the terminal hours for use of the garden, from 21:00 
Sunday to Thursday and 22:30 on Fridays, Saturdays, Bank Holidays and 
Christmas Eve, to 00:00 hours. 
 
The Sub - Committee posed a number of questions to Mrs Short relating to 
Environmental Health’s objections. 
 
Mrs Short informed Members that the Premises were in very close proximity 
to residential properties and that noise (live music, chatter etc.) from the 
garden had the potential to expose local residents to excessive noise 
nuisance. The addition of a plastic roof to the garden seating area and other 
miscellaneous materials to absorb the noise were not considered adequate 
noise control measures. The Applicant had made no contact with 
Environmental Health to discuss noise sensitive mitigation/sound attenuation 
measures for the garden. 
 
She noted that residents could tolerate an element of noise disturbance in the 
earlier part of the night when ambient noise levels are high but would find it 
increasingly intolerable as ambient levels fell. The proposed variation to the 
terminal hours would be detrimental to local residents, as they might be more 
sensitive than normal to noise during the latter part of the night. 
 
The Chairman invited Councillor Currans to explain her opposition to the 
application. 
 
Councillor Currans responded that considerable resources were being 
devoted by Dartford Borough Council to make the Town Centre a more 
pleasant place and improve the night time experience for visitors. 
 
Councillor Currans felt that variations to the terminal hours for the garden use 
and live music, would worsen the current situation relating to anti-social 
behaviour and noise, thus impacting on local residents and making the Town 

Page 8Agenda Item 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020 
 

5

Centre an unpleasant place to visit. She also had concerns about cigarette 
littering when the garden was closed. 
 
At the conclusion of questioning, Constable Hunt, Councillor Currans and the 
Applicant and were invited to make closing statements. The Applicant re 
iterated a few substantive issues from her original statement. 
 
The Sub – Committee then withdrew in closed session to consider its 
decision. The legal adviser and Committee Co-ordinator accompanied the 
Sub-Committee. 
 
The determination of the hearing is as follows: 
 
In seeking to achieve an appropriate balance between the extension of hours 
sought and the impact it would have on the residential area and having 
considered the evidence presented, national guidance and the Licensing 
Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy, in particular section 2.7 ‘The 
Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of 
the licensed premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the 
adoption of best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures 
for the achievement of all the Licensing Objectives’, the Sub–Committee 
concluded that for the reasons detailed below, the application by Mrs Yvonne 
Rickards for the variation to the Premises Licence of the Wig & Gown Spital 
Street Dartford Kent DA1 1DX, be APPROVED subject to a variation of the 
conditions of the Premises Licence as detailed in the table below.  
 
The Sub-Committee considered that the licensing objectives of the prevention 
of crime and disorder, and the prevention of public nuisance were engaged. 
 
Conditions to be removed 
from the Premises Licence 

Conditions to be added to 
the Premises Licence 

Licensing Objective 

When the premises are open 
between the 20:00hrs until 
close on Thursday, Friday 
and Saturdays and Bank 
Holidays a minimum of 4 SIA 
door supervisors must be 
present at the customer exit 
and entrance of the 
premises. 

Three (3) SIA registered door 
supervisors  shall be on duty 
at the premises from 20:00 
hrs to close: 
 

(a) on Fridays and 
Saturdays, and on 
any day proceeding a 
Bank Holiday or 
public holiday; AND 
 

(b) on any day when a 
live music 
performance is being 
held at the premises. 
 

Crime and Disorder 

The rear garden shall not be 
used by patrons after 21:00 
Sunday to Thursday, nor 
after 22:30 on Fridays, 
Saturdays, Bank Holidays or 

The rear garden shall not be 
used by patrons after 21:00 
Sundays to Thursdays, nor 
after 23:00 on Fridays and 
Saturdays. 

Public Nuisance 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



CHAIRMAN’S 
INITIALS

Christmas Eve. 
Bottles and other waste 
should not be removed from 
the premises and tipped into 
refuse and recycling bins 
between 21:00 and 08:00. 
Kitchen waste may be 
emptied until 21:30. Waste 
and recycling bins utilised 
shall be lidded and large 
enough to hold all waste 
generated by the premises. 

With the exception of kitchen 
waste, bottles and other 
waste shall not be removed 
from the premises and tipped 
into refuse and recycling bins 
between 21:00 and 08:00. 
The waste and recycling bins 
utilised shall be lidded and 
large enough to hold all waste 
generated by the premises. 

Public Nuisance 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 

1. The Sub – Committee noted the history of the premises and that there 
was a level of crime and disorder and noise disturbance associated 
with its operation. However, The Sub-Committee noted that these 
incidents occurred before the Applicant took over the running of the 
premises. The Sub-Committee was confident in the Applicant’s 
knowledge and experience to manage the premises. 

 
2. The Sub-Committee noted Kent Police’s concerns that any extension 

of the terminal hour for no admission or re-admission to1:45 would 
result in public disorder arising from patrons attending the premises to 
drink alcohol after they had been ejected from other local licensed 
premises. The Sub-Committee was therefore of the view that the 
retention of the terminal hour of 00:00 regarding no admission or re-
admission was appropriate to meet the licensing objective of crime and 
disorder.  

 
3. Kent Police was prepared to withdraw its objection to reduce the 

number of SIA registered door supervisors from 4 to 3 and the 
requirement for a risk assessment, provided the terminal hour 
regarding no admission or re-admission remained at 00:00 hours.  

 
4. The Sub-Committee was of the view that the presence 3 SIA door 

supervisors was appropriate to meet the licensing objective of the 
prevention of crime and order and should be required on: 

 
(a) Fridays and Saturdays, and on any day proceeding a Bank Holiday 

or public holiday; and 
(b) when any live music events were being held at the premises.  

 
5. The existing condition limiting the use of the rear garden was unduly 

restrictive considering the location of the premises within the town 
centre, where there would be background noise. The Sub-Committee 
was therefore prepared to vary this condition as set out in the table 
above, on the basis that the revised condition was appropriate to meet 
the objective of the prevention of public nuisance.  

 
6. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that any kitchen waste from the 

premises would be placed in the bins in the rear garden to the 
premises without causing any disturbance to local residents. The 

Page 10Agenda Item 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 30 JULY 2020 
 

7

existing condition limiting the times of such activity was therefore not 
appropriate and should be varied so as to remove any such controls 
relating to kitchen waste. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered that the above conditions were 
proportionate and appropriate, given the location of the premises and 
the representations objections made. 
 
On the above basis, the Sub-Committee was prepared to approve the 
application to vary the Premises Licence, mindful of the fact that if any 
issues arose as a result of the operation of the Premises, residents and 
responsible authorities would be able to bring a review of the Premises 
Licence, which would bring the matter back before the Sub-Committee. 
 
The parties are hereby notified that they may appeal against this 
decision to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date 
of notification of this decision. 

 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.35 pm 
 
  

 
Councillor C S McLean  

  
CHAIRMAN 

 
 
 

Page 11 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 1 of 14 

 

 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE RULES OF PROCEDURE 

1. General 
 

1.1 These rules of procedure are subject to the Statement of Licensing Policy, the Gambling 
Policy Statement and the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005, Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) 
Regulations 2005, Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises 
certificates)(Amendment) Regulations 2012 and the Gambling Act 2005 (Proceedings 
of Licensing Committees and Sub-committees) (Premises Licences and Provisional 
Statements) Regulations 2007 (the ‘Regulations’). Where appropriate, the provisions of 
the Regulations have been incorporated into these rules. 

 
1.2 The Licensing Authority is The Dartford Borough Council. 

 
1.3 ‘Affected Person’ means in relation to the Affected Premises, the holder of a premises 

licence or club premises certificate or club gaming/club machine permit or other permit 
issued under the Gambling Act 2005, the premises user in relation to a temporary event 
notice or temporary use notice, the applicant for a premises licence or club premises 
certificate or club gaming/club machine permit or other permit issued under the 
Gambling Act 2005 (where the application has not been determined), a person in receipt 
of a provisional statement and an applicant for the grant or renewal of a personal licence. 

 
1.4 ‘Affected Premises’ means the premises the subject of the Application. 

 
1.5 ‘Application’ means: 

 
(a) for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003, the application for the grant, variation or 

review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, the application for a 
temporary event notice or the application for the grant or renewal of a personal 
licence. 

 
(b) for the purposes of the Gambling Act 2005, the application for the grant, variation or 

review of premises licences or the grant or cancellation of permits or the 
consideration of a temporary use notices. 

 
1.6 ‘Interest’ means a disclosable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest as defined in 

Annex 2 to these rules of procedure. 
 

1.7 ‘Interested Person’ means: 
 

(a) for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003, any persons making Relevant 
Representations; 

 
(b) for the purposes of the Gambling Act 2005, any persons living in the vicinity of the 

Affected Premises that are likely to be affected by the Application, or those persons 
who are involved in a business in the vicinity of the Affected Premises that might be 
affected by the Application; 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 2 of 14 

 

or 
 

any person who is representing such persons. 
 

1.8 ‘Parties to the Hearing’ means Affected Person, Interested Person and Responsible 
Authorities. 

 
1.9 ‘Relevant Representations’ means representations that relate to one or more of the 

licensing objectives made by an Affected Person, Interested Person or Responsible 
Authority. 

 
1.10 ‘Responsible Authority’ means the bodies that must be fully notified of the Application 

and that are entitled to make Relevant Representations to the Licensing Authority on the 
Application and include the chief officer of police, the fire & rescue authority, the local 
planning authority, environmental health, primary care trusts and public health boards 
for the area in which the Affected Premises are situated. 

 
2. Composition of Sub-Committee and declaration of Interests 

 
2.1 The Sub-Committee will ordinarily comprise three (3) Councillors of the Licensing 

Authority’s Licensing Committee of whom, one will be appointed Chairman. The quorum 
will be three (3) for the duration of the meeting. 

 
2.2 Substitution (subject to relevant training) is not permitted once a hearing has commenced, 

Where the quorum is lost (for whatever reason), the Alternate Member will take the place 
of the ordinary Member for whom they are the substitute and will have all the powers and 
duties of an ordinary Member of the Sub-Committee. Once a Member is substituted, they 
will no longer participate in the hearing.  

 
2.3 Councillors will declare any Interest and explain the nature of the Interest at the 

beginning of the Sub-Committee meeting, or when the Interest becomes apparent and 
unless they have been granted a dispensation, will not participate in any discussion of, 
or have their vote taken on, the matter in which they have an Interest and will withdraw 
from the meeting in accordance with Standing Order 19. 

 
2.4 Where a Sub-Committee meeting becomes inquorate during the course of the meeting, 

then the meeting will be adjourned to such time, place and date as may be determined 
by the Councillors present. Decisions taken by the Sub-Committee before the meeting 
becomes inquorate, will not be invalidated by a later lack of quorum.  

 
2.5 Sub-Committee Councillors will have regard to the Probity in Licensing Guide. 

 
3. Notice of hearing 

 
3.1 The Licensing Authority will give a notice to the Party to the Hearing, stating the date 

and time and place at which the hearing is to be held (the ‘notice of hearing’) in 
accordance with the provisions of the Regulations. 

 
3.2 The notice of hearing will be accompanied by information regarding the following: - 

 
(a) the rights of the Party to the Hearing as provided for in paragraphs 4.1 and 8.5 

to these rules of procedure; 
(b) the consequences of not attending or not being represented at the hearing; 
(c) the procedure to be followed at the hearing; 

Page 14Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 3 of 14 

 

(d) any particular points on which the Licensing Authority considers that it will want 
clarified at the hearing. 

 

4. Right of attendance, assistance and representation 
 

4.1 Subject to paragraph 6.5 of these rules of procedure, a Party to the Hearing may attend 
the hearing to make Relevant Representations and be assisted or represented by any 
person whether or not that person is legally qualified.  

 
If a disability or illness prevents you or makes it difficult for you to comply with these rules 
of procedure, please contact the Licensing Manager at least 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting or as soon as it becomes apparent. 

 
4.2 Upon receipt of the notice of hearing and within the period of time prescribed by the 

Regulations, each Party to the Hearing will give to the Licensing Authority, a notice 
stating:- 

 
(a) whether he/she intends to attend or be represented at the hearing; 
(b) whether he/she considers a hearing to be unnecessary. 

 
4.3 In a case where a Party to the Hearing wishes any other person (other than his/her 

representative) to appear at the hearing, the notice referred to in paragraph 4.2 above, 
will contain a request for permission for such other person to attend at the hearing 
accompanied by details of the name of that person and a brief description of the point 
or points on which that person may be able to assist the Licensing Authority in relation 
to the application. 

 
4.4 A Party to the Hearing who wishes to withdraw any Relevant Representations they have 

made may do so: 
 

(a) by giving notice to the licensing manager no later than 24 hours before the day 
on which the hearing is to be held; or 

(b) orally at the hearing. 
 

5. Right to dispense with a hearing if all parties agree 
 

Where all Parties to the Hearing agree that a Sub-Committee hearing is unnecessary and 
have given notice to the Licensing Authority, and if the Licensing Authority agree that a 
hearing is unnecessary, it may dispense with holding a hearing and will forthwith give 
notice to the Parties to the Hearing, that the hearing has been dispensed with. 

 
6. Hearing to be in public 

 
6.1 Subject to paragraphs 6.2 – 6.4 below, the hearing will take place in public. The press and 

members of the public are able to observe the hearing (held in open session), but not 
participate.  

 
6.2 The Sub-Committee will exclude the public and press from that part of the hearing where 

confidential information is likely to be revealed i.e. information that has been provided by 
a government department under the condition that it must not be revealed as well as 
information that cannot be revealed under any legislation or by a court order. 

 
6.3 The Sub-Committee will have the discretion to decide whether or not to exclude the public 

and press from that part of the hearing, where exempt information i.e. information 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 4 of 14 

 

contained in Annex 1 to these procedure rules is likely to be revealed. 
 

6.4 When considering whether confidential or exempt information is likely to be revealed, the 
Sub-Committee will consider whether any Parties to the Hearing should be excluded from 
that part of the hearing, which is likely to disclose confidential and/or exempt information. 

 

6.5 Disruptive behaviour 
 

The Sub-Committee may require any person who is acting or behaving in a disruptive 
manner, to leave the hearing and may – 

 
(a) refuse to permit that person to return; or 
(b) permit him/her to return only on such conditions as the Sub-Committee may 

specify; 
 

but subject to the person being provided with the opportunity to submit to the Sub- 
Committee in writing, before the end of the hearing, any information which they would 
have been entitled to give orally, had they not been required to leave. 

 
7. Report 

 
7.1 The Sub-Committee will receive a report prepared by the licensing officer. 

 
7.2 The licensing officer will comply with the access to information rules in Standing Orders 

and submit a copy of the report to the Parties to the Hearing in advance of the hearing. 
 

8. Procedure at hearing 

 
As a matter of practice, the Sub-Committee will seek to focus the hearing on the steps 
needed to promote the particular licensing objective(s), which has given rise to the specific 
representation(s) and will avoid straying into undisputed areas. 

 
8.1 The order of business will be at the discretion of the Sub-Committee, but will normally 

proceed in accordance with the following paragraphs. 
 

8.2 The Chairman will at the beginning of the hearing, introduce the Sub-Committee 
members, invite the Parties to the Hearing and any Councillor representative to identify 
themselves and then explain to the parties the procedure that the Sub-Committee intends 
to follow.   

 
8.3 The Sub-Committee will then proceed to consider any request made by a Party to the 

Hearing for permission for another person to appear at the hearing. Permission will not 
be unreasonably withheld. 

 
8.4 The Chairman may ask a representative of the Licensing Authority to introduce the report, 

and outline the matter before the Sub-Committee. Alternatively, the Chairman may 
proceed directly to paragraph 8.5 below. 

 
8.5 Parties to the Hearing will be entitled to: - 

 
(a) give further information in support of their application, Relevant Representations 

or notice (as applicable) in response to a point upon which the Licensing Authority 
has given notice that it requires clarification; 

(b)  

Page 16Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 5 of 14 

 

(c) address the Sub-Committee. 
 

8.6 The Parties to the Hearing will normally be invited to address the Sub-Committee in the 
following order: - 

 
(a) Affected Person 
(b) Responsible Authority 
(c) Interested Person 

 
8.7 Members of the Sub-Committee may ask any question of any Party to the Hearing or other 

person appearing at the hearing. 
 

8.8 Where there is more than one Relevant Representation raising the same or similar 
grounds, the Sub-Committee will request that only one party address them on behalf of 
the parties who have made the Relevant Representations. 

 
8.9 Subject to paragraph 8.10 below, in considering any Relevant Representations or notice 

made by a Party to the Hearing, the Sub-Committee may take into account additional 
documentary or other information produced by such a Party in support of their application, 
Relevant Representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing date or, with 
the consent of all the other parties and the Chairman, at the hearing. Where all the other 
parties consent, the  Sub-Committee has discretion as to whether to admit additional 
documentary evidence or other information at the hearing, but will generally allow this to 
be presented, if it is relevant and material to the application, the Relevant Representations 
or notice submitted and the licensing objectives. 

 
As a matter of good practice, any additional documentation or other information produced 
in advance of the hearing date, should be submitted to the licensing officer no later than 
two working days before the hearing. 

 
8.10 The Sub-Committee will disregard any information given or evidence produced by a party 

or any person to whom permission is given to appear at the hearing, which is not relevant 
to: 

 
(a) their application, Relevant Representations or notice (as applicable) or in the 

case of another person, the application, Relevant Representations or notice of 
the party requesting their appearance, and 

(b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a hearing to consider a 
notice given by a chief officer of police, the crime prevention objective. 

 
8.11 Hearsay evidence may be admitted before the Sub-Committee, but consideration will 

always be given to the weight, if any, to be attached to such evidence, depending upon 
the circumstances in which it arises. 

 
8.12 CCTV and/or audio evidence (no longer than three minutes in length) in addition to a 

description of how, when and where the CCTV/audio was recorded and what it contains, 
may be submitted in evidence, at least 72 hours before the hearing is due to start. The 
Chairman, exercising his/her discretion, will decide if it is necessary in the interests of 
justice, for the CCTV/and/or audio evidence to be presented. 

 
8.13  Video evidence must be submitted in MP4 format (no longer than three minutes in length). 

The recording must be edited down to the highlights, containing only relevant matters, 
which relate to the Relevant Representations. In addition, a description of how, when and 
where the video was recorded and what it contains must be submitted in evidence, at 

Page 17 Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 6 of 14 

 

least 72 hours before the hearing is due to start. The Chairman, exercising his/her 
discretion, will decide if it is necessary in the interests of justice for the video evidence to 
be presented. 

 
8.14 Subject to paragraph 8.15 below, the Parties to the Hearing will be entitled to make closing 

submissions (not introducing any new evidence). The closing submissions of the Affected 
Person will normally follow the closing submissions of any Responsible Authority and/or 
Interested Person. 

 
8.15 Should any Parties to the Hearing wish to rely on any points of law, specific references in 

the s.182 Guidance1, Licensing Authority policy or any other external sources, 
submissions must be submitted by email, to the Licensing Authority, at least three days 
before the date of the hearing. 

 
8.16 Unless stipulated by law, the Sub-Committee may vary the time limits specified in these 

rules or set realistic time limits for constituent elements of the hearing and for the hearing 
overall. All Parties to the Hearing will be allowed an equal maximum period of time overall 
for the presentation of their case and will be allowed an equal maximum period for the 
testing of their opponent’s case. 
 

8.17 The Sub-Committee may, after hearing the Relevant Representations of the Parties to the 
Hearing, withdraw from the room to make their deliberations, in closed session. 
Alternatively, the Sub- Committee may ask all Parties to the Hearing and the public and 
press, to leave the room.    

 
8.18 The Committee Co-ordinator will accompany the Sub-Committee when they retire to make 

their deliberations. 
 

9. Role of Legal Adviser 
 

9.1 The Sub-Committee may seek advice or clarification of any procedural, technical or legal 
matter from the legal adviser at any time during the course of the hearing. 

 
9.2 The legal adviser will provide the Sub-Committee with any advice it requires properly to 

perform its functions whether or not the Sub-Committee requested that advice, on: 
 

(a) questions/points of law; 
(b) questions of mixed fact and law; 
(c) matters of practice and procedure; 
(d) the range of options available to the Sub-Committee; 
(e) any relevant decisions of courts; 
(f) relevant national guidance or policy; 
(g) other issues relevant to the matter before the Sub-Committee; 
(h) the appropriate decision-making structure to be applied in any given case. 

 
9.3 The legal adviser will assist the Sub-Committee where appropriate as to the formulation 

of reasons and the recording of those reasons. 
 

9.4 The legal adviser will play no part in making findings of fact, but may assist the Sub- 
Committee by reminding it of the evidence taken from his/her own or the Committee Co-
ordinator’s notes. 

 
9.5 The legal adviser may ask questions of witnesses and the parties in order to clarify the 

                                                 
1 April 2018 

Page 18Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 7 of 14 

 

evidence and any issues in the case. The legal adviser is under a duty to ensure that 
every case is conducted fairly. 

 
9.6 When advising the Sub-Committee, the legal adviser should: 

 
(a) ensure that he/she is aware of the relevant facts; 
(b) invite Relevant Representations from the parties on the advice; 
(c) provide the parties with the information necessary to enable them to make their 

Relevant Representation. 
 
9.7 The legal adviser will join the Sub-Committee during the course of its deliberations in 

closed session. The legal adviser’s role will be limited to giving advice on matters detailed 
in paragraph 9.2 above.  

 
9.8 Any advice given by the legal adviser to the Sub-Committee in closed session will be 

disclosed upon the hearing reconvening, with no further discussion on the advice. 
 

10. Role of Committee Co-ordinator 
 

10.1 The Committee Co-ordinator’s role will be to make a record of the proceedings, 
summarise and record decisions and to provide help and assistance to members of the 
public attending hearings.  

 
10.2 The Committee Co-ordinator will remain with the Sub-Committee when it retires to make 

its deliberations. 
 

11. Determination of applications 
 

11.1 The Sub-Committee will give appropriate weight to: 
 

(a) the Relevant Representations (including supporting information) presented by all 
the parties; 

(b) national guidance; 
(c) the Licensing Authority’s Licensing/Gambling Policy; 
(d) the steps that are necessary to promote the licensing objectives. 

 
11.2 The Sub-Committee will make its determination: 

 
(a) at the conclusion of the hearing; or 
(b) within five working days of the date of the hearing. 

 
11.3 The determination will be issued by the Director of Housing and Public Protection under 

delegated authority. The licensing manager will append the licence and a summary to the 
determination. 

 
12. Failure of parties to attend the hearing 

 
12.1 If a Party to the Hearing has informed the Licensing Authority that he/she does not intend 

to attend or be represented at the hearing, the hearing may proceed in his/her absence. 
 

12.2 If a Party to the Hearing fails to provide notification in accordance with paragraph 12.1 
above, and fails to attend or be represented at a hearing, the Sub-Committee may: 

 
(a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the hearing to 

Page 19 Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 8 of 14 

 

a specified date; or 
(b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence and will consider at the hearing, the 

application, Relevant Representations or notice made or submitted by that party. 
 

13. Adjournments 
 

13.1 Subject to the provisions of the Regulations, the Sub-Committee may, where necessary 
for its consideration of any Relevant Representations or notice made by a party to the 
hearing, adjourn the hearing to a specified date. 

 
13.2 Where the Sub-Committee adjourns the hearing to a specified date, it will forthwith notify 

the Parties to the Hearing of the date, time and place. 
 

14. Record of proceedings 
 

14.1  A record/minute of the hearing will be kept for 6 years from the date of determination or, 
where an appeal is brought against the determination, the disposal of the appeal. 

 
15. Waiver of rules 

 
15.1 Except where prescribed by the Regulations, the Sub-Committee may in any particular 

case, dispense with or modify these rules of procedure. 
 

15.2 The Licensing Authority may extend the time limit provided for in the Regulations for a 
specified period, where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. 

 
15.3 Where the Licensing Authority has extended the time limit, it will forthwith give a notice to 

the Parties to the Hearing, stating the period of time of the extension and the reasons for 
it. 

 
16. Qualified Privilege 

 
16.1 Statements made in Sub-Committee meetings are subject to the general principles of the 

law of defamation. However, the Sub-Committee’s proceedings are regarded in law as a 
‘privileged occasion’ to which the doctrine of qualified privilege attaches to statements 
made in its proceedings (quasi-judicial in nature), providing the following criteria are met: 

 
a. any opinions expressed are honestly held; 
b. opinions/statements are based on the facts of the matter; 
c. opinions/ statements are on a matter of public interest; 
d. a clear distinction is made between what is fact and what is opinion; 
e. no malice. 

 
17. Licensing Committee Hearings 

 
17.1 These rules of procedure will apply to hearings before the Licensing Committee except to 

the extent that the Member composition of the Committee will comprise no less than 5 
members. 

 
  

Page 20Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 9 of 14 

 

HUMAN RIGHTS 
 

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and 
makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way, which is incompatible with a convention 
right. The Sub-Committee will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its 
licensing functions, with particular reference to the following provisions: - 

 
 Article 1 of the first protocol – every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of 

his/her possessions 
 Article 6 - in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is entitled to a 

fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial 
tribunal established by law 

 Article 8 – everyone has the right to respect for his/her home and private and family 
life 

 

RIGHT OF APPEAL 
 

THE APPLICANT 
 

The applicant has a right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days [beginning with the 
day on which the applicant was notified of the decision of the Licensing Authority] against a 
decision. 

 
 

PERSON MAKING RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS AND CHIEF OFFICER OF POLICE 
 

A person who made Relevant Representations and the Chief Officer of Police has a right of 
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days [beginning with the day on which the person 
was notified of the decision of the Licensing Authority] against a decision. 

 
 
 
 

Adopted by the Licensing Committee on 29 March 2010 [Min.No.17] 
Amended by authority of the GAC [16 July 2012 [Min.No.35]] 
Adopted by the Licensing Committee 19.12.2012 [Min.No.11] 
Prejudicial Interest definition reviewed and adopted by the GAC – 16.12.2013 [Min.No.72] 
Reviewed pursuant to Standing Order 38 - 15 May 2020 
Reviewed pursuant to the Strategic Director (External Services)’s delegated authority - 20 July 2020 
Reviewed pursuant to the Director of Housing and Public Protection’s delegated authority – 10 May 2021 
 

Page 21 Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 10 of 14 

 

ANNEX 1 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
SCHEDULE 12A: PARTS 1-3 
STANDING ORDER 46 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION: CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION 

 
Category Qualification 

 
1. Information relating to an individual 

Information is not exempt information unless it relates to 
an individual of that description in the capacity indicated 
by the description i.e. it must relate to and be recognisable 
as referring to a particular living individual in the roles 
indicated. 

 
Information is only exempt: 
(a) where disclosure is prohibited by statute; or 
(b) where disclosure might involve providing personal 

information about individuals; or 
(c) where disclosure might breach a duty of 

confidentiality; and 
(d) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 

in not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of 

an individual 

Information is not exempt information unless it relates to 
an individual of that description in the capacity indicated 
by the description i.e. it must relate to and be recognisable 
as referring to a particular living individual in the roles 
indicated. 

 
Information is only exempt: 
(a) where disclosure is prohibited by statute; or 
(b) where disclosure might involve providing personal 

information about individuals; or 
(c) where disclosure might breach a duty of 

confidentiality; and 
(d) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 

in not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 
3. Information relating to the financial or business  affairs 

of any particular person (including the authority 
holding the information) 

 
‘financial or business affairs’ includes contemplated, as 
well as past or current, activities 

 
This category will include commercial and contractual 
interests 

 
Information is not exempt information if it is required to be 
registered by law e.g. Companies Act 1985, the Charities 
Act 1993 etc. 

 
Information is only exempt if and for so long as: 
(a) disclosure of the amount involved would be likely to 

give advantage to a person entering into or seeking to 
enter into a contract with the Council in respect of 
property, goods or services whether the advantage 
would arise as against the Council or as against other 
persons; or 

(b) disclosure would prejudice the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the use of Council resources; or 

(c) disclosure of trade secrets and other information 
would, or would likely, prejudice the commercial 
interests of any person, including the Council; and 

(d) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 
4. Information relating to any consultations or 

negotiations or contemplated consultations or 
negotiations, in connection with any labour relations 
matters arising between the authority or a minister 
of the crown and employees of, or office- holders 
under, the authority 

 
‘Labour relations matters’ are as specified in paragraphs 
(a) to (g) of Section 29(1) of the Trade Unions and Labour 
Relations Act 1974 i.e. matters which may be the subject 
of a trade dispute 

Information is only exempt if and for so long as its 
disclosure to the public: 
(a) would prejudice the Council in those or any other 

consultations or negotiations in connection with a 
labour relations matter; and 

(b) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

Page 22Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 11 of 14 

 

Category Qualification 
‘employee’ means a person employed under a contract 
of service 

 
‘office-holder’ means the holder of any paid office 
appointments which are or may be made or confirmed by 
the authority or by any joint board on which the authority 
is represented or by any person who holds any such 
office or is an employee of the authority 

 

 
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal 

professional privilege could be maintained in legal 
proceedings 

Information is only exempt: 
(a) where a claim of legal professional privilege could be 

maintained in legal proceedings e.g. correspondence 
such as legal advice and assistance between the 
Council’s Legal Services and its client; and 

(b) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 
in not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 
6. Information which reveals that the authority 

proposes – 
 

(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or 
by virtue of which requirements are imposed on 
a person, or 

(b) to make an order or direction under any 
enactment 

Information is exempt only if and so long as: 
(a) disclosure to the public might afford an opportunity to 

a person affected by the notice, order or direction to 
defeat the purpose or one of the purposes for which 
the notice order or direction is to be given or made; and 

(b) in all circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 
7.  Information relating to any action taken or to be  taken 

in connection with the prevention, investigation or 
prosecution of crime 

Information is only exempt if its disclosure would, or 
would be likely to, prejudice- 
(a) criminal investigations and proceedings; or 
(b) the apprehension or prosecution of offenders; or 
(c) the administration of justice; or 
(d) the assessment or collection of any tax or duty or of 

any imposition of a similar nature; or 
(e) regulatory enforcement; or 
(f) any civil proceedings; or 
(g) Health and safety; or 
(h) information obtained from confidential sources; and 
(i) in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest 

in not disclosing the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 

Page 23 Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 12 of 14 

 

ANNEX 2 

INTERESTS 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as prescribed by the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest) Regulations 2012 are as follows and subject to the following definitions: 

 
“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011 

 
“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest 

 
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society 

 
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant 
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income 

 
“M” means a member of the relevant authority 

 
“member” includes a co-opted member 

 
“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member 

 
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a notification for the purposes of 
section 30(1), or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act 

 
“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act (the Member’s spouse, civil partner, 
or somebody with whom they are living as a husband or wife, or as if they were civil partners) 

 
“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the 
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with 
a building society 

 
Interest Description 
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant authority) made 
or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties 
as a member, or towards the election expenses of M. 

 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade 
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority: 

 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 

 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority. 
Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a 

month or longer. 
Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge): 

 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

  

Page 24Agenda Item 6



Date:10 May 2021 
Licensing/Procedure/Licensing Subcommittee Hearing Procedure 

Page 13 of 14 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

 
(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the relevant 
authority; and 

 (b) either 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the 
shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 

Prejudicial Interests (as prescribed by Dartford Borough Council) 
 

A prejudicial interest means an interest (other than a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) in any matter under 
consideration at any meeting which may reasonably be regarded as affecting your financial position or the financial 
position of a person or body you are associated with:- 

 
18.1.1 to a greater extent than other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the Council’s 

area; and 

18.1.2 where a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard the 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment. 

You will not normally have a prejudicial interest if: 
 

(a) you are a tenant of the Council provided that the matter under consideration does not relate particularly 
to your tenancy or lease; or 

(b) you are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, unless the matter under 
consideration relates particularly to the school which your child attends; or 

(c) you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of, statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social 
Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992; or 

(d) as a member of the Council, you are given a payment or indemnity; or 

(e) as a member of the Council, you are being/have been bestowed a ceremonial honour by the Council; 
or 

(f) the Council is setting the council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992; or 

(g) you serve as a member of a body exercising functions of a public nature (e.g. other government 
agencies, other councils, public health bodies, school governing bodies), unless the matter under 
consideration relates particularly to the body. 

 
 
 

Amended by the GAC - 27.02.17- Min.No.75(4) 

Page 25 Agenda Item 6



APPENDIX 1 - A COUNCILLOR’S REPRESENTATIONAL ROLE – 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD AND LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Legal/Member Code of Conduct/ Flowchart on Councillor Representational Role 

     

     

 

             

   

 

           

       

     

     

             

             

             

     

     

     

     

                   

                     

       

   

 

       

SITE VISITS – DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD AND LICENSING SUB-
COMMITTEE 

Development  Control 
Board members   Disclosable  Pecuniary 

Interest  or  Prejudicial 

Interest 

Predisposed to a view 

Predetermined  view or 

biased or perception of 

predetermination  or 

appearance of bias 

Unless  granted  a  dispensation,  cannot 

represent  constituents  at  Board/Sub‐

committee meeting or take part in the decision 

making  process  and must  leave  the meeting 

room during the discussion and vote 

Can represent constituents and take part in the 

debate and decision making process 

Cannot represent constituents at a Board/Sub‐

committee meeting or take part in the decision 

making  process  and  must  leave  the  meeting 

room during the discussion and vote  

Licensing  Sub‐committee 
members 

OR 

Non  DC  Board  members 

representing constituents at 

DC Board meetings 

Disclosable  Pecuniary 

Interest  or  Prejudicial 

Interest

Unless  granted  a  dispensation,  cannot 
represent  constituents  at  a  Board 
meeting/Sub‐committee  meeting  and  must 
leave  the meeting  room during  the discussion 
and vote Non  Licensing  Sub‐

committee  members 

representing constituents at 

sub‐committee hearings 

OR 

Disclosable  Pecuniary 

Interest  or  Prejudicial 

Interest 

Cannot  attend  a  site 
visit 

Predetermined view or 

biased or perception of 

predetermination or 

appearance of bias

Cannot  attend  a  site  
visit  - no  lobbying  
etc permitted 

All Councillors  

Development Control 
Board and Licensing Sub‐
committee members 

Can  make 
representations  by 
other means 

Written representations to officers in own right 
or on behalf of constituents and if not granted 
a dispensation, arrange for another Member to 
attend  Board/Sub‐committee  meeting  to 
represent constituents’ views 

The  principles  of  predetermination  or  bias  or 

perception of predetermination or appearance 

of bias, do not apply  to Members who do not 

take part in the decision‐making process 

Make  written  representations  to  officers  in 
own  right  or  on  behalf  of  constituents  and  if 
not  granted  a  dispensation,  arrange  for 
another  Member  to  attend  Board/Sub‐
committee meeting  to represent constituents’ 
views 

Can  make 
representations  by 
other means 

Written  representations  to  officers  in  own 
right  or  on  behalf  of  constituents  and/or 
arrange  for  another  Member  to  attend 
Board/Sub‐committee  meeting  to  represent 
constituents’ views

Can  make 
representations  by 
other means 

Page 26Agenda Item 6

mkellystone
Highlight

mkellystone_1
Highlight

mkellystone_2
Highlight

mkellystone_3
Highlight



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 
SD1 

APPLICATION BY DARTFORD SOCIAL CLUB LTD FOR A 
VARIATION TO THE CLUB PREMISES CERTIFCATE HELD AT 59 
LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD, KENT DA1 1HP 
 
Town 
 
1. Summary 
 

1.1 To determine an application to vary a Club Premises Certificate. 

 
2. Background and Discussion 
 

2.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing 
authority) to carry out its various licensing functions so as to promote the 
following four licensing objectives:  

 

(1) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

  (2) public safety; 

(3) the prevention of public nuisance; 

(4) the protection of children from harm*. 

 
2.2 The 2003 Act further requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of 

Licensing Policy’ that sets out the policies the Council will generally 
apply to promote the licensing objectives when making decisions on 
applications made under the Act.  The General Assembly of the Council 
adopted the Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy, on 10 
December 2018 {Min. No 72].  Should the need arise, the Policy will be 
available at the meeting, for reference purposes. 

 

 2.3 Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in 
carrying out their functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State under section 182.  The Guidance cannot 
anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may 
arise.  Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and 
considered the Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do 
so.  However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have regard to 
the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for its departure from it.  
This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from 
the Guidance result in a determination, which gives rise to an appeal or 
judicial review.  Should the need arise; the Guidance will be available at 
the meeting, for reference purposes. 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 7



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 

2.4 Applications will be considered on their individual merits and the Sub-
Committee will impose any conditions that it considers appropriate to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

 
3 THE APPLICATION 
 
 3.1 Application 

  The application is to vary a Club Premises Certificate under Section 84 
of the Licensing Act 2003 in relation to the premises Dartford Social Club 
– Appendix A  

    
(a) The Operating Schedule, part 4 of the application- Appendix B, 

requests the variation to the trading hours with proposed additional 
conditions: 

  
(b) Relevant licensable activities: 

 
 Sale and supply of alcohol for consumption by or on behalf of 

the club to members and guests on the premises. 
 Regulated entertainment, including films, plays, indoor sporting 

events, the performance of dance, live music and recorded 
music 

 
(c)  Hours for the sale and supply of alcohol: 
 

Monday to Thursday 11:00 to 23:00 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 to 00:30 
Sunday 11:00 to 22:30 
Sunday of the AGM 10:00 to 22:30 
New Year’s Eve 11:00 to 01:00 
 

(d) Hours for regulated Entertainment – Plays, films, performance of 
dance and indoor sporting events: 

 
Monday to Saturday 11:00 to 23:30 
Sunday 11:00 to 23:00 
 
Live Music: 
 
Monday to Thursday 19:00 to 23:00 
Friday and Saturday 19:00 to 01:00 
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30 
 
Recorded Music 
 
Monday to Thursday 11:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 to 01:00 
Sunday 11:00 to 23:00 
New Year’s Eve 11:00 to 01:30 
 

 
 (e) Other times premises proposed to be open to the public:  

Page 28Agenda Item 7



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 

    
Monday to Thursday 11:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 to 01:00 
Sunday 11:00 to 23:00 
Sunday of the AGM 10:00 23:00 
New Year’s Eve 11:00 to 01:30 
 

(f) A Club Premises Certificate does not require a Designated 
Premises Supervisor. 

 
(g) All conditions under Annex 1 and Annex 2 of the current licence 

(Appendix A) to remain on licence. 
 

(h) Additional conditions proposed to promote the licensing objectives 
detailed in section M (page 15 – Appendix B): 
 

4 RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 4.1 Responsible Authorities  
 

 Police – The Police has made no representation based on the 
licensing objective of ‘crime and disorder’.  

 Environmental Health Officer – has made a representation 
based on the licensing objective Public Nuisance – Appendix C. 

 Planning Officer – has made no representation. 
 Fire Safety Officer – has made no representation. 
 Child Protection Agency – has made no representation. 
 Trading Standards - has made no representation. 
 

 4.2 Interested Parties  
 

Responses were received from a local resident and QBit the Managing 
Agent for the freeholder of Instone House – APPENDIX D and 
Appendix E 

   
4.3 Local Policy Considerations 

     
It is considered that the following Policies have a bearing upon the 
application and these are summarised at APPENDIX F. 

 
4.4 Secretary of State Guidance Considerations 

It is considered that the following matters set out in the Secretary 
of State’s Guidance have a bearing upon the application and 
these are summarised at APPENDIX G. 
 
 

4.5 Human Rights 

Page 29 Agenda Item 7



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 

The Council has a duty under Article 8 of the European Convention on 
Human Rights to protect the rights of its residents to privacy and family 
life.  The Council also acknowledges the rights of businesses in its area 
to operate, but this must be balanced against the rights of residents not 
to be disturbed by unreasonable noise and nuisance caused by 
licensed premises. 

 4.6 Conditions 
 In all applications relating to premises licenses’ the Council expects 

applicants to specify methods by which they will promote the four 
licensing objectives in their operating schedules.  Even if the applicant 
refers to the objectives, they may not necessarily achieve the promotion 
of the licensing objectives in a given case.  Where appropriate, and in 
order to promote the four licensing objectives, the Sub-Committee will 
attach additional conditions to premises licenses. 
(a) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

  This may, for example, be promoted by employing registered door 
supervisors, ensuring staff have attained relevant BIIAB 
qualifications, i.e. the Drugs Awareness Certificate, the Barperson’s 
National Certificate, the Professional Barperson’s Qualification etc., 
incorporating a search policy into the entry conditions of the 
premises, the location and standard of any CCTV systems on the 
premises, restrictions on the irresponsible use of ‘happy hours’ and 
other drinks promotions. 

  
The applicant proposes to include all conditions outlined in 
Appendices A and B. 

 
(b) Public Safety 

  This may, for example, be promoted by ensuring that staff have the 
appropriate training, ensuring that safe capacity limits are set and 
that there is no overcrowding, that fire-fighting equipment is 
checked regularly, and that certificates required by the Council are 
available by the relevant date. 

 
The applicant proposes to include all conditions outlined in 
Appendices A and B. 
 

 (c) The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
  The Council will take particular care to ensure that residents are not 

disturbed late at night.  Where an application is made for a new 
licence or for an extension of hours beyond 11pm, the Council will 
not grant the application unless satisfied that it will not create an 
unreasonable disturbance to local residents.  However, before 
refusing a licence on these grounds, the Council will consider 
whether such disturbance may be avoided by the application of 
conditions. 

Page 30Agenda Item 7



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 

 
The applicant proposes to include all conditions outlined in 
Appendices A and B. 

 
  (d) Noise from Premises  
  In the case of every premises licence application the Council will 

consider whether the sound from music and/or customers may 
escape from the premises, noise from ventilation and other 
mechanical plant is minimal, steps are taken to ensure patrons and 
staff leave the premises quietly (including the prominent display of 
notices to this effect), arrangements are made for patrons to park 
their cars in a manner that does not disturb or inconvenience local 
residents and arrangements are made to minimise noise from taxis.  
Conditions may be imposed to satisfy these considerations.   

 
The applicant proposes to include all conditions outlined in 
Appendices A and B. 

 
  (e) The Protection of Children 
 

 This may, for example, be achieved by ensuring children are not 
admitted to premises on days when adult entertainment is provided, 
that ‘proof of age’ cards complying with the Home Office approved 
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS), such as those promoted 
by the Portman Group, are required for the supply of alcohol, and 
that children are not admitted, or allowed to remain on, premises 
after a certain time.   

 
The applicant proposes to include all conditions outlined in 
Appendices A and B. 
 

5.  Determining the Application 
 
 (a) The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application with a 

view to promoting the licensing objectives, which are: 
 

 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; 

 the protection of children from harm. 

 
(b) In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have 

regard to the Secretary of State’s Guidance and the Council’s 
adopted Licensing Policy. 

 

Page 31 Agenda Item 7



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 

(c) The Sub-Committee must also have regard to all of the 
representations made and the evidence it hears and must take 
such of the following steps, as it considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 
(i) grant the application as requested; 

(ii) modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or 
adding to them; or 
(iii) reject the whole or part of the application. 

(d) The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the 
conditions or reject the whole or part of the application merely 
because the Sub-Committee considers it desirable to do so.  
Modification or rejection must actually be appropriate in order to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

 
6. Observations on the Application: 

 
The Premises is a members club situated in Lowfield Street, Dartford. The 
Premises holds a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 
and has held a Licence since 2005. Prior to this, it held a Justices Licence.  .  
 
The application was received on the 21 April 2022, however the application 
was not advertised until 20 May 2022, and therefore the consultation period 
ran between the 21 May 2022 and the 17 June 2022. During this period blue 
notices were displayed at the premises, in a local newspaper and on the 
Council’s website. 
 
During the consultation period, mediation was carried out with the 
Environmental Health, but conditions could not be agreed. Environmental 
Health has objected to the application under the Public Nuisance objective. 
 
Representations were received from a local resident and the Managing 
Agent for the freeholder of Instone House detailing how granting the licence 
will have an effect on the licensing objective of public nuisance.  
 

7. Conclusion: 
 
This application is for the Sub-Committee to determine in light of the 
representation received, the evidence before it and the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

 
8. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not Applicable. 
 
 

Page 32Agenda Item 7



                  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

13 JULY 2022 

 

9. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 
Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications As included in Secretary of State's 

Guidance. 
Public Sector Equality Duty  
Crime and Disorder Duty Application assessed by the Police and 

no implications  
Climate Impact Assessment None 
Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment As included in Secretary of State's 

Guidance. 
 

10. Appendices: 
 

Appendix A: current premises licence 
 
Appendix B: Variation application 
 
Appendix C: Representation from Environmental Health 
 
Appendix D: Representations from Interested Party – Local Resident 
 
Appendix E: Representations from Interested Party – QBit 
  
Appendix F: Local Policy Considerations 
 
Appendix G: Secretary of State Guidance Considerations 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Application 
Form 

21 April 
2022 

 Joanne Philpott 
01322 343024 

Licensing 
Strategic 

N/A 

All other 
documents 
mentioned 

17 June 
2022 

 Joanne Philpott 
01322 343024 

Licensing 
Strategic 

N/A 

Page 33 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Club premises certificate number DH/CPC/012/2005

Name of club in whose name the certificate is granted and relevant registered postal
address of club

Dartford Social Club

Address

59 Lowfield Street

Post town Dartford, Kent Post code DA1 1HP
Telephone number 01322 223192

If different from above the postal address of club premises to which the certificate
relates, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Post town Post code
Telephone number

Where the club premises certificate is time limited the dates

Qualifying club activities authorised by the certificate

The sale and supply of alcohol to member and guests. The provision of entertainment to
include plays, films, indoor sporing events, live and recorded music, a performance of
dance. The provision of entertainment facilities for making music and dancing.

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
Club Premises Certificate

Part A

Club details

Page 35 Agenda Item 7



The times the certificate authorises the carrying out of qualifying club activities

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours means:
(a) On the following weekdays, namely Monday to Friday, other than Christmas Day,
or Good Friday , 10 a.m. to 11 p.m.,
(b) On Saturdays other than Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 11 p.m.;
(c) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m.
(d) On Good Friday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m.
(e) On Christmas Day, as provided by the rules of the club and notified in writing by
the chairman or secretary of the club to the chief executive of the justices for the petty
sessions area in which the premises are. The said hours shall:
i. not exceed six and a half hours;
ii. not begin earlier than 12 noon;
iii. not end later than 10.30 p.m.
iv. provide for a break of at least 2 hours, including 3 p.m. to 5 p.m.;
v. not extend for more than three and a half hours after 5 p.m.
(f) On New Year'sEve, from the end of the permitted hours to the start of the
permitted hours on the following day or, if there are no permitted hours on the
following day, until midnight on 31 December.

The opening hours of the club

As detailed in club rule book

Where the certificate authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies

On the Premises to Members and Guests

State whether access to the club premises by children is restricted or prohibited

Persons under 18 are only allowed in the club if accompanied by an adult.

________________________________ 24 November
2005
Strategic Director

Page 36Agenda Item 7



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

Supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises Licensing Act 2003 (c.17 Part 4, s.73)

A Club Premises Certificate which authorises the supply of alcohol for consumption
off the premises must include the following conditions;

1. – A club premises certificate may not authorise the supply of alcohol for
consumption off the premises unless it also authorises the supply of alcohol to a
member of the club for consumption on those premises.

2. – A club premises certificate which authorises the supply of alcohol for
consumption off the premises must include the following conditions:-

I. the supply of alcohol must be made at a time when the premises are
open for the purposes of supplying alcohol, in accordance with the club
premises certificate, to members of the club for consumption on the
premises.

II. Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be in a
sealed container.

III. Any supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be made
to a member of the club in person.

Exhibition of films Licensing Act 2003 (c.17 Part 4, s.74)

Where the Club Premises Certificate authorises the exhibition of films, the certificate
must include a condition requiring the admission of children to the exhibition of any
film to be restricted in accordance with this section.

1. –Where the film classification body is specified in the certificate, unless subsection
(3) (b) applies, admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by that body.

2. - Where –

the film classification body is not specified in the certificate, or
the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the certificate that this

subsection applies to the film in question,

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation
made by that licensing authority.

In this section –

Page 37 Agenda Item 7



“children” means person aged under 18; and
“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under
section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of
video works for classification).

Page 38Agenda Item 7



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Club Operating Schedule

PLAIN CLUB

Credit Sales (from original Justices Licence)

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or at the time when it
is sold or supplied, except alcohol sold or supplied:
(a) with and for consumption at a meal supplied at the same time, is consumed with
the meal and paid for together with the meal;
(b) for consumption by a person residing in the premises or his guest and paid for
together with his accommodation;
(c) to a canteen or mess.

Permitted Hours - Clubs (from original Club Registration Certificate)

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours means:
(a) On the following weekdays, namely Monday to Friday, other than Christmas Day,
or Good Friday , 10 a.m. to 11 p.m.,
(b) On Saturdays other than Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 11 p.m.;
(c) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m.
(d) On Good Friday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m.
(e) On Christmas Day, as provided by the rules of the club and notified in writing by
the chairman or secretary of the club to the chief executive of the justices for the petty
sessions area in which the premises are. The said hours shall:
i. not exceed six and a half hours;
ii. not begin earlier than 12 noon;
iii. not end later than 10.30 p.m.
iv. provide for a break of at least 2 hours, including 3 p.m. to 5 p.m.;
v. not extend for more than three and a half hours after 5 p.m.
(f) On New Year'sEve, from the end of the permitted hours to the start of the
permitted hours on the following day or, if there are no permitted hours on the
following day, until midnight on 31 December.

The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(a) the supply to, or consumption by, any person of alcohol in any premises where
they are residing.
.
Regulated Entertainment – (from original Justices Licence)

Unless otherwise specified on this licence no regulated entertainment shall take place
at the premises with the exception of pre-booked private events limited to the
provision of music and dancing for pre-invited guests.

The Licensee may also provide and permit:
a) Entertainment by way of music and singing but only by the reproduction of
recorded sound (this does not permit the use of Karaoke, Disk Jockeys, and

Page 39 Agenda Item 7



Compares etc).
b) The consumption of late night refreshment for a period of 30 minutes after the
permitted hours set out above.

Drinking up times

The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the consumption of alcohol
on the premises;
(b) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours, the consumption of the alcohol
on the premises by persons taking meals there if the alcohol was supplied for
consumption as ancillary to the meals.
(c) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol
from the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel;
(d) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the
vendor of the alcohol so ordered;
(e) consumption of the alcohol on the premises by, or the taking of, sale or supply to,
any person residing on the premises
(f) the sale or supply of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or
club;
(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the
sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or
an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces;
(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a
person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or
the consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied;
(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there
for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the
consumption of alcohol so supplied, if the alcohol is supplied at the expense of their
employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises

Conditions from Justices Licence

1. Any alteration of the rules of the club must be notified to the Licensing
Authority and no such alteration shall be effective until notification is so
given.

The Club will comply with The Rules of the Dartford Social Club

Page 40Agenda Item 7



Appendix B

Page 1 of 18 

Application to vary a club premises certificate to be granted 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

 
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING 

APPLICATION 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary.  
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 
 
DARTFORD SOCIAL CLUB LTD. 
(Insert name of club)  
club applies for a club premises certificate under section 84 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises named in Part 1 below 
 

Club premises certificate number 
DH/CPC/012/2005 

 
 
Part 1 – Club premises details 
 

Name of club 
DARTFORD SOCIAL CLUB LTD.       

Postal address of premises, if any, or if none ordnance survey map reference or description 
59 LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD. 

Post town DARTFORD Postcode DA1 1HP 
Telephone number (if any) 01322 223192 
E-mail address (optional) dartfordsocialclub205@gmail.com 

 
Name of person performing duties of a secretary to the club 
NICOLA BUDDS 

Address of person performing duties of a secretary to the club 
59 LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD. 

Post town DARTFORD Postcode DA1 1HP 
Daytime contact telephone 
number (if any) 01322 223192 

E-mail address (optional) dartfordsocialclub205@gmail.com 
 

Page 41 Agenda Item 7



2 

Part 2 – Applicant details 
 

Daytime contact telephone 
number (if any) 01322 223192 

E-mail address (optional)       
Current postal address 
if different from 
premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       
 
Part 3 - Variation 

Please tick  

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?            
 Yes              No  

 

If not when do you want the variation to take effect from? DD MM YYYY 
                        

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night 
levy? (See guidance note 1)         Yes   No 

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note 2) 
      

 
If the club’s proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more 
people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please 
state the number expected to attend 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42Agenda Item 7



3 

Part 4 – Club Operating Schedule   
 
Please complete those parts of the Club Operating Schedule which would be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful.  
 
What qualifying club activities do you intend to conduct on the club premises which will be 
affected by your application?   
 

Provision of regulated entertainment(please read guidance note 3)  Please tick all that 
apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) X 

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) X 

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) X 

d) boxing or wrestling entertainments (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) X 

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) X 

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) X 

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (if ticking yes, 
fill in box H)  

 

   

   

   

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of 
the club (if ticking yes, fill in box I) x 

The sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a guest of a member of the 
club for consumption on the premises where the sale takes place (if ticking yes, fill in 
box J) 

x 

 
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 
 
 

Page 43 Agenda Item 7



4 

A 
 

Indoors  
Plays  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) Outdoors  

Day Start Finish 

Will the performance of a play take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)   
 

Both  

11.00 23.30 Mon 

            

11.00 23.30 Tue 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

11.00 23.30 Wed 

            

11.00 23.30 Thur 

            

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 
guidance note 6 
      

11.00 23.30 Fri 

            

11.00 23.30 Sat 

            

12.00 23.00 Sun 

            

Non standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the performance of a play at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 44Agenda Item 7



5 

B 
 

Indoors  
Films  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) Outdoors  

Day Start Finish 

Will the exhibition of films take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)  
 

Both  

11.00 23.30 Mon 

            

11.00 23.30 Tue 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

11.00 23.30 Wed 

            

11.00 23.30 Thur 

            

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of film (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

11.00 23.30 Fri 

            

11.00 23.30 Sat 

            

12.00 23.00 Sun 

            

Non standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the exhibition of film at different times from those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 45 Agenda Item 7



6 

C 
 

Indoor sporting events  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) 

Day Start Finish 

11.00 23.30 Mon 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

11.00 23.30 Tue 

            

11.00 23.30 Wed 

            

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

11.00 23.30
      

Thur 

            

11.00 23.30 Fri 

            

11.00 23.30 Sat 

            

12.00 23.00 Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for indoor sporting events at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 46Agenda Item 7



7 

D 
 

Indoors  
Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 4)   
 

Both  

            Mon 

            

            Tue 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            Wed 

            

            Thur 

            

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 
entertainment (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            Fri 

            

            Sat 

            

            Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the boxing or wrestling entertainment at different 
times from those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 47 Agenda Item 7



8 

E 
 

Indoors  
Live music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) Outdoors  

Day Start Finish 

Will the performance of live music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)   
 

Both  

19.00 23.00 Mon 

            

19.00 23.00 Tue 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

19.00 23.00 Wed 

            

19.00 23.00 Thur 

            

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

19.00 01.00 Fri 

            

19.00 01.00 Sat 

            

12.00 22.30 Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the performance of live music at different times 
from those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 48Agenda Item 7



9 

F 
 

Indoors  
Recorded music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) Outdoors  

Day Start Finish 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)   
 

Both  

11.00 23.30 Mon 

            

11.00 23.30 Tue 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

11.00 23.30 Wed 

            

11.00 23.30 Thur 

            

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 
(please read guidance note 6) 
NEW YEAR;S EVE UNTIL 01.30 

11.00 01.00 Fri 

            

11.00 01.00 Sat 

            

12.00 23.00 Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the playing of recorded music at different times 
from those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 49 Agenda Item 7



10 

G 
 

Indoors X 
Performances of dance 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) Outdoors  

Day Start Finish 

Will the performance of dance take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)   
 

Both  

19.00 23.00 Mon 

            

19.00 23.00 Tue 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

19.00 23.00 Wed 

            

19.00 23.00 Thur 

            

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

19.00 01.00 Fri 

            

19.00 01.00 Sat 

            

12.00 22.30 Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the performance of dance at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 50Agenda Item 7



11 

H 
 

Anything of a similar 
description to that 
falling within (e), (f) or 
(g) 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment that the club 
will be providing 
      

Day Start Finish Indoors  

            Outdoors  Mon 

            

Will this entertainment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 
guidance note 4)  

Both  

            Tue 

            

            Wed 

            

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            Thur 

            

            Fri 

            

State any seasonal variations for this entertainment (please read 
guidance note 6) 
      

            
Sat 

            

            
Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for this entertainment at different times from those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 7) 
      

 
 

Page 51 Agenda Item 7



12 

 I 
 

On the 
premises X 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) Off the 

premises  

Day Start Finish 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 
consumption – please tick  (please read 
guidance note 9)   
 

Both  

11.00 23.00 Mon 

            

11.00 23.00 Tue 

            

11.00 23.00 Wed 

            

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6) 
NEW YEAR’S EVE: SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL UNTIL 01.00 

11.00 23.00 Thur 

            

11.00 0.30 Fri 

            

11.00 0.30 Sat 

            

12.00 22.30 Sun 

            

Non-standard timings.  Where the club intends to use the 
premises for the supply of alcohol at different times from those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 7) 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 
FROM 10.00 ON A SUNDAY 

 
 

Page 52Agenda Item 7



13 

J 
 

Hours club premises 
are open to the 
members and guests 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 8) 

Day Start Finish 

11.00 23.30 Mon 

            

11.00 23.30 Tue 

            

11.00 23.30 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6) 
NEW YEARS EVE: CLOSE AT 01.30 

Wed 

            

11.00 23.30 Thur 

            

11.00 01.00 Fri 

            

11.00 01.00 Sat 

            

12.00 23.00 Sun 

            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 
open to the members and guests at different times from those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 7) 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: OPEN TO MEMBERS ONLY 
ON A SUNDAY AT 10.00 

 
K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children (please read guidance note 10). 
N/A 

 
 
 

Page 53 Agenda Item 7



14 

 
L 
 

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the certificate which you believe could 
be removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking. 
WE WISH TO EXTEND OPENING HOURS EVERY FRIDAY AND SATRUDAY 
EVENING.  

 
Please tick as appropriate 
 I have enclosed the club premises certificate  
 I have enclosed the relevant part of the club premises certificate X 

 
If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the 
certificate or part of it below 
 

Reasons why the club has not enclosed the club premises certificate or relevant part of it: 
      

 
 

Page 54Agenda Item 7



15 

M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 
 
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 11) 

FIRE EXITS ARE CLEARLY INDICATED THROUGHOUT THE CLUB ALONG WITH 
FIRE ALARMS AND SMOKE DETECTORS. ENTRANCE TO THE CLUB IS VIA A KEY 
FOB SYSTEM OTHERWISE THE INTERCOM NEEDS TO BE USED.  

 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

CCTV SYSTEM INSTALLED AND RECORDING 24 HOURS PER DAY.  
AT LEAST ONE COMMITTEE MEMBER MUST BE ON DUTY DURING EVENING 
FUNCTIONS AND A DOOR PERSON IS ON DUTY ON SATURDAY EVENINGS.  
NO ADMISSION OR READMISSION IS PERMITTED INTO THE PREMISES AFTER 
23.00 
ALL ALCOHOL IS TO BE SERVIED IN TOUGHENED GLASS OR PLASTIC AND THEY 
ARE NOT TO BE REMOVED FROM THE LICENSED AREA.  

 
c) Public safety 

SECURITY STAFF RE HIRED FOR LARGE FUNCTIONS, E.G NEW YEAR’S EVE. 
CCTV SIGNAGE THROUGHOUT THE CLUB.  

 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 

WHERE THERE ARE LATE NIGHT MUSIC EVENTS WINDOWS AND DOORS WILL 
BE KEPT SHUT TO AVOID DISTURBANCE TO NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES.  

 
e) The protection of children from harm 

ALL CHILDREN MUST BE ACOMPANIED BY AN ADULT. NO UNACCOMPANIED 
CHILDREN ALLOWED ON THE PREMISES.  

 
 

Page 55 Agenda Item 7



16 

Checklist: 
Please tick to indicate agreement 
 I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. X 
 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities. X 
 I understand that I must now advertise my application. X 
 I have enclosed the club premises certificate or relevant part of it or explanation. X 
 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 

be rejected. X 

 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   
 
Part 5 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 12) 
 
I NICOLA BUDDS 
  (Insert full name)  
make this application on behalf of the club and have authority to bind the club 
 

Signature fgdghdfhdfhdfhdf 

Date 12/04/2022 

Capacity SECRETARY 

 
Address for correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 13) 
59 LOWFIELD STREET 
 
 

Post town DARTFORD Postcode DA1 1HP 
Telephone number (if any) 01322 223192 
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e mail, your e mail address (optional) 
Dartfordsocialclub205@gmail.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56Agenda Item 7



17 

Notes for Guidance 
 

1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are 
applying is to avoid becoming liable for the late night levy. 

2. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises it is, its general situation and 
layout and any other information which would be relevant to the licensing objectives. 
Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place 
for people to consume these off-supplies, please include a description of where this will 
be and its proximity to the premises. 

3. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  
 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in 

community premises  between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening 
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such 
screening abides by age classification ratings. 

 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

 Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, 
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. 
Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which 
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a 
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event. 

 Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar 
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell 
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 
responsible for the premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a 
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the 
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the 
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a 
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser 
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for 
the premises. 

Page 57 Agenda Item 7



18 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at 
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or 
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and 
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school 
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 
 Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance 
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable. 

 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, with no limit on audience size for:    

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority 
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local 
authority;  

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health 
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the 
health care provider;  

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place 
at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that 
accommodates the audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the 
same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

4. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may 
include a tent). 

5. Please state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

6. For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will go on for an extra hour during 
summer months. 

7. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a 
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00). 
9. If the club wishes members and their guests to be able to consume alcohol on the 

premises, please tick ‘on the premises’. If the club wishes people to be able to purchase 
alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If the club 
wishes people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’. 

10. Please give information about anything to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of 
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, for example (but not 
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or gambling machines 
etc. 

11. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 
12. The application form must be signed by someone with the authority to bind the club. 
13. This is the address which we will use to correspond with the club about this application. 

 

Page 58Agenda Item 7



From: Gloria Minshull >  
Sent: 18 May 2022 10:57 
To: Licensing <  
Subject: 22/00154/LACPC - Application to Vary Permitted Hours - DH/CPC/012/2005 - Dartford 
Social Club Ltd, 59 Lowfield Street, Dartford, Kent DA1 1HP 
Importance: High 
 
I refer to the above-mentioned application to vary the permitted hours on Club Premises Certificate 
DH/CPC/012/2005. 
 
I must draw your attention to a recent complaint of noise from loud music and from persons 
congregating immediately outside the premises in the area of the rear most fire door opening onto 
Instone Road, for the purposes of smoking and drinking. My investigation into the complaint is 
ongoing, but I have already communicated with the applicant about the complaint. 
 
I am also aware that there is a condition on the Club Premises Certificate, which was proposed by 
the applicant that states: 
 
                When there are late music events windows and doors will be kept shut to avoid disturbance 
to neighbouring properties. 
 
Unfortunately, this condition only applies a control to noise emanating from the which is generated 
from late music events, whereas, public nuisance from noise can occur at any time of day or night, 
and is not limited to noise solely resulting from music events. 
 
In the circumstances, I would have no objection to the application to vary the permitted hours, 
provided that there were enforceable conditions on the Club Premises Certificate which would 
effectively control any public nuisance from the premises or resulting the activities of the business at 
the premises. I propose that that following conditions be applied to the Club Premises Certificate, as 
part of the variation of the permitted hours, in additional to any others applied for the purposes of 
meeting the licensing objectives: 
 

 Whenever live or recorded music is played, or is playing, at the premises, all doors and 
windows at the premises shall be kept closed [to replace the current condition outlined 
above]. 
Reason: For the prevention of public nuisance 

 Customers of the premises may only enter and leave the premises through the front main 
access door to the premises, except in an emergency. 
Reason: For the prevention of public nuisance 

 Customers of the premises wishing to smoke during their visit to the premises, must use the 
designated smoking area at the front of the premises. 
Reason: For the prevention of public nuisance 

 Drinks shall not be removed from the licensed area. 
Reason: for the prevention of crime and disorder, and, for the prevention of public nuisance 

 There shall be prominent signage in the designated smoking area at the front of the 
premises clearly stating that customers should be respectful and considerate of neighbours 
to the premises and should at all times keep noise to a minimum. 
Reason: For the prevention of public nuisance 

 There shall be a prominent sign on the main egress door to the premises asking customers 
to be quiet and behave respectfully when leaving the premises. 
Reason: For the prevention of public nuisance 

 
I note that the plan submitted with the application for the Premises Licence in May 2019, is of 
significant age and is not very legible, and, may not reflect the current layout of the premises. 

Page 59 Agenda Item 7



Therefore, I would strongly recommend that an updated plan of the premises be sought from the 
applicant as part of the variation of the club premises certificate, which reflects the layout of the 
premises as they are currently laid out, in order to avoid confusion over what areas are subject to 
the conditions of the Club Premises Certificate. 
 
If you wish to discuss this matter further, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Regards, 
  
Gloria Minshull (She/Her) 
Environmental Health Officer 
Environmental Health Department 

Page 60Agenda Item 7



Title:            Mr 
First Name: George 
Surname:    Stephens 
Address:     8 Instone House Instone Road Dartford Kent DA1 2AG  
                    Instone Road 
                    Dartford 
Postcode:    DA1 2AG 
 
Home Phone:     07792614332 
Mobile Phone:   07792614332 
Email Address:  StephensG103@gmail.com 
 
Department/Subject Area: 
Licensing- 
 
Enquiry/Request: 
Regarding application from Dartford Social Club's for extension to the permitted hours 
 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
I write regarding the application from Dartford Social Club to extend their hours of sale. I 
wish to object to the proposed extension based on the following grounds.  
 
Firstly, I work for Kent Police and so am aware of the issues created by anti-social drinking. 
Drinking in the town centre already caused a vast array of issues for local residents including 
noise, litter, damage and general behaviour related to the behaviours of people that drink to 
excess. The town already includes several premises where drinking beyond midnight is 
permitted and I believe these venues are sufficient. Dartford Social club is set slightly out of 
the town centre, meaning there is not easy access to taxi services increasing drink driving 
concerns. The premises already displays disregard for the residents of Instone House and with 
the Copperhouse Green development nearing completion, the population in this area will 
soon increase significantly. The rear fire door is always open which is where the customers of 
the social club congregate to smoke. This is not a designated area for smoking and the club 
have no provisions for the waste cigarette ends, meaning that they end up on the floor. They 
are also allowed to enter the street with their drinks whilst they smoke, leading to smashed 
glass and people loitering in the street. This area is no more than 10ft from the nearest 
resident of Instone House. A byproduct of the fire door being left open is that the loud noise 
of music and customers comes from the club and can be heard by all the residents of Instone 
House. This currently goes until 2300 which is manageable. However, if this was to be 
extended to 0100, this would significantly impact on the lives of the residents. I have also 
previously directly witnessed a male urinating in the street from the club in a recent daytime 
event held by the club. I believe this shows the club already does little to control the 
associated anti social behaviour created as a result of their activities. An extension of their 
hours will allow these behaviours to not only continue, but to worsen as people drink more, 
later into the evening impacting on the local residents.  
 
Additionally, as the fire door is used as a smoking area, this creates concerns around the 
safety of the social club. The building adjoins to Instone House and so any issues with fire 
would significantly impact on Instone House. There are also no security that monitor this area 
of the club increasing the likelihood for fights and other associated behaviour with alcohol. I 

Page 61 Agenda Item 7

mailto:StephensG103@gmail.com


do not routinely see security on the site, which with the current hours I do not believe is a 
problem. Should the hours be extended, I believe that security would be a must to manage the 
street drinking and the exit from the club to minimise the impact of loitering intoxicated 
individuals. It has very recently been shown with Atik and The Clipper that if the exit of 
customers is not properly managed late at night, it leads to loitering individuals which then 
increases tensions between the intoxicated people leading to violence, criminal damage and 
disorderly behaviour. The safety of Instone House residents is also impacted by the parking at 
the social club. Customers routinely park on the pavement near to the underpass in order to 
use the club. When I say park on the pavement, this is not two wheel on the pavement. The 
vehicles mount the curb in the bus stop and park side by side and stack themselves up 
meaning multiple vehicles are all parked in the same location blocking the path. The vehicles 
are also occasionally stationary in this location with their engines running. The window to 
flat 1, Instone House is on top of where these vehicles park and myself and my partner in flat 
8 on the second floor can smell the engine fumes in our bedroom when this happens. 
Increased as we approach summer and if we want to leave our windows open. This is 
unacceptable and completely unnecessary when the Priory Center car park is opposite the 
club. This is just another example of the failure by the management of the social club to 
respect their neighbours and manage their customers impacting on local residents.  
 
Above I have set out how the club already impacts on the lives of residents and how an 
extension of their permitted times will negatively impact on the families that live here. I 
wholeheartedly object to this extension. Myself and my partner as well as all the residents 
moved in next door to a social club with the expectation of some noise as per their current 
permitted times. An extension of this now would not be fair and is not what the residents 
displayed they were happy with when moving into the town. Another establishment with late 
drinking in the town does not make the area one of qualify, choice and safety as I have set out 
above. It would negatively impact on the local community, environment and not make 
Dartford an enjoyable place to live, work and enjoy leisure time.  
 
I was only made of the application to extend hours today as the club have failed to notify the 
residents. I will also be putting this into a letter which I will post ASAP. I also have a recent 
video displaying the noise, parking and loitering individuals should you require it.  
 
Kindest regards, 
 
Mr George Stephens and Miss Amelia Hurley 

Page 62Agenda Item 7



\ 
it 

Property Management Ltd 

9 Wharf Street 

Greenwich 

London 

The Licensing Section 

Dartford Borough Council 

Civic Centre 

Home Gardens 

Dartford 

Kent 

DAl lDR 

25th May 2022 

Dear Sirs, 

RE: OBJECTION TO DARTFORD SOCIAL CLUB'S APPLICATION TO EXTEND PERMITTED HOURS 

We would like to formally object to the application made by Dartford Social Club, 59 Lowfield Street to vary their Club Premises 

Certificate. 

They have applied to extend their permitted hours on both Friday and Saturday nights to serve alcohol until 00.30, have 

entertainment until 23.30 and both live and recorded music until 01.00. 

We are the Managing Agent acting for and on behalf of the Freeholder of lnstone House, a residential block of flats which adjoins 

the Social Club. lnstone House has two separate entrances on lnstone Road and there are 15 individual residential leasehold flats. 

The building was converted from commercial to residential in 2021 and since then new homeowners have purchased properties, 

attracted to the location and the purpose build design and construction, including the security of the building. 

We have regularly received complaints from leaseholders about the noise, littering and congregation of guests from the club 

outside the block and we know many residents have individually complained to the Council. We also know that many residents will 

also be writing to you to object to this extension of hours. 

We are neighbours of the Social Club, but this is a residential area also, and our objection is based on the extended hours causing 

the following: 

• More noise/music in the club being heard inside residential flats for longer and later, at times when residents are trying to

sleep.

• Congregation of intoxicated guests on the pavement outside the block of flats talking loudly in groups.

• Littering the pavement areas directly outside the windows of ground floor flats and in the doorways - left to us to clear

away and at the expense of the leaseholders through their service charge.

• Potential for damage to the property by intoxicated guests. The building has a large amount of glass both in the doorways

and frontage.

• Potential urinating by guests in the doorways / walls. Late at night there are no other open venues for people to use

toilets.

• Potential cigarette/cannabis smoking, littering the pavement, walkways with cigarette butts and residents having being

subjected to the smells of smoke especially if they have their windows open.

• Potential for anti-social behaviour by intoxicated club guests leaving the club.

• Cars parked on the wide pavement in front of flat windows and block entry door. This has already happened, and

complaints made to the Council by the affected residents.

F 

� The Property�' Ombudsman
r,l•, �,., 1.• ,.,r 

Page 63 Agenda Item 7



it 
Property Management Ltd 

9 Wharf Street 

Greenwich 

London• 

• We nor any of our residents have had any contact from the Club to acknowledge residents' current concerns and

complaints. The Club has also failed to make any attempt to let residents know they are making this application, so we can

only assume the Club are not taking into consideration they adjoin a residential area, and those residents have concerns.

We only found out when a resident complained to the Council and was told this application has been made.

The weekends are times for quiet enjoyment, and we believe that allowing the Club to operate later into the weekend evenings will 

only further increase complaints made to your team. 

As the Managing Agent we have a responsibility to maintain the building and the communal areas, and this includes the safety and 

enjoyment of the leaseholders who have purchased a flat to live there peacefully. 

Yours faithfully, 

Chantal Lagrin 

Property Manager 

Qbit Property Management Company Ltd 

� The Properly }Ombudsman 
.. -� . �,-. ,,. '" 

Page 64Agenda Item 7



                                                                                    APPENDIX D

LOCAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 

It is considered that the following Policies have a bearing upon the 
application: 
 
 
1.7 The Policy does not undermine the rights of any person to apply under 

the 2003 Act for a variety of permissions and have the application 
considered on its individual merits, as well as against the relevant 
policy and statutory framework. It does not override the right of any 
person to make representations on any application or seek a review of 
a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do so under the 
2003 Act.  In formulating this policy the Licensing Authority has had 
regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.  This Act 
places a duty on public authorities to protect the rights of individuals in 
a variety of circumstances, and to balance those rights against the 
rights of persons trading in licensable activities and to achieve 
proportionality.  The Licensing Authority has also had regard to the 
Race Relations Act 1976 as amended by The Race Relations 
(Amendment) Act 2000, and to the Disability Discrimination Act 1995. 

 
1.9 The Licensing Authority recognises the aspirations of the legislation 

that longer licensing hours with regard to the sale of alcohol are 
important to ensure that the concentration of customers leaving 
premises simultaneously are avoided. However, there is no general 
presumption in favour of lengthening licensing hours and the four 
licensing objectives will be paramount considerations at all times. 
Where there are objections to an application and the Licensing 
Authority believes that changing the licensing hours would undermine 
the licensing objectives, they may reject the application or grant it with 
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 

 
1.10 The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its 

discretion has been engaged following receipt of relevant 
representations and it has been satisfied at a hearing of the necessity 
to impose conditions. It may then only impose conditions that are 
necessary to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. A 
hearing is not required where an application has been lawfully made 
and no responsible authority or interested party has made a 
representation. In these cases, the Licensing Authority must grant the 
application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which are 
consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory 
conditions in the Act.   

 
 The object of licensing is to maintain appropriate control of licensed 

premises, qualifying clubs, temporary events and the people who 
manage them or hold personal licences within the terms of the 2003 
Act.  Where any party makes relevant representations, the Licensing 
Authority will seek to make objective judgements as to whether 

Page 65 Agenda Item 7



                                                                                    APPENDIX D

conditions may need to be attached to a licence, certificate to secure 
achievement of the licensing objectives. Any such conditions will 
primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at 
licensed premises on those attending the premises and members of 
the public living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity in the 
vicinity and will cover issues that are reasonably within the control of 
individual licensees. 

 
3.3 The promotion of the licensing objective, to prevent crime and 

disorder, places a responsibility on licence holders to become key 
partners in achieving this objective. Applicants will be encouraged to 
demonstrate in their operating schedule, when necessary, that suitable 
and sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented 
and maintained to reduce or prevent crime and disorder on and in the 
vicinity of their premises, relevant to the individual style and 
characteristics of their premises and events. 

 
4.1 The Licensing Authority is committed to ensuring that the safety of any 

person visiting or working in licensed premises is not compromised. To 
this end, applicants will be encouraged to demonstrate in their 
operating schedule, when necessary, that suitable and sufficient 
measures have been identified and will be implemented and 
maintained to ensure public safety, relevant to the individual style and 
characteristics of their premises and events. 

 
5.1 Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on 

communities through public nuisances that arise from their operation.  
The Licensing Authority wishes to proactively maintain and protect the 
amenity of residents and other businesses from the potential 
consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst recognising 
the valuable cultural, social and business importance that such 
premises provide. 

 
5.3 Applicants need to clearly understand that the Licensing Authority will 

pay particular attention whether or not to impose stricter conditions, 
including controls on licensing hours, where licensed premises are in 
residential areas with a view to protecting the quality of life of 
residential occupiers. 

 
5.5 Applicants will be encouraged to demonstrate in their operating 

schedule, when necessary, that suitable and sufficient measures have 
been identified and will be implemented and maintained to prevent 
public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of 
their premises and events.

Page 66Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX E 
 

 
SECRETARY OF STATE GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS  
 
It is considered that the following matters set out in the Secretary of State's Guidance have a 
bearing upon the application: 
 
Licensing objectives and aims 
 
1.2  The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which 

must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  

1.3  The licensing objectives are:  
• The prevention of crime and disorder;  
• Public safety;  
• The prevention of public nuisance; and  
• The protection of children from harm.  

 
1.4  Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives, 

so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.  

1.5  However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These 
are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work. 
They include:  

 
• protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and 

noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;  
• giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively 

manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those 
premises that are causing problems;  

• recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in 
our local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, 
encouraging innovation and supporting responsible premises;  

• providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local 
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions 
about the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and  

• encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving 
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions 
that may affect them. 
 

Each application on its own merits 
 
1.17  Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the 

licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls 
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and 
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need 
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be 
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case.  

 
Public nuisance  
 
2.15  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises 
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing 

Page 67 Agenda Item 7



objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including 
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 
pollution, noxious smells and litter.  

2.16  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however 
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may 
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, 
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.  

2.17  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the 
levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure 
such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or 
persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More 
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker 
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, 
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances 
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions 
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, 
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing 
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter 
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for 
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable 
burden for smaller venues.  

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their 
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 
additional conditions may be appropriate.  

2.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should 
normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for 
people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning 
when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. 
This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 
pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the 
premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers 
enter and leave.  

 
2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting outside 

premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give 
rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.  

2.21  Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish 
to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to 
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.  

 
 

Page 68Agenda Item 7



The role of responsible authorities 
 
9.12  Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it 

is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main 
source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police 
have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good working 
relationships with those operating in their local area. The police should usually therefore 
be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the promotion of 
the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible authority under the 
2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they 
have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities must therefore 
consider all relevant representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where 
the reason for a particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of 
a particular objective may not be immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent 
on all responsible authorities to ensure that their representations can withstand the 
scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.  

  
Hearings 

9.37  As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

9.38  In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 
weight to:  

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  
• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 

parties;  
• this Guidance;  
• its own statement of licensing policy. 

 
9.39  The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the conclusion 

of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide reasons to support 
it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. Notification of a 
decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party to appeal. After 
considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the application 
subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. Any 
conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 
there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is merely 
aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to the 
health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to the 
licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has not 
been necessary.  

9.40  Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this 
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify 
a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable 
activities.  

 
Hours of trading  
 
10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol 
for consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping 

Page 69 Agenda Item 7



unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those 
hours.  
 
Appeals 
 
13.2  With the exception of appeals in relation to closure orders, an appeal may be made to 

any magistrates’ court in England or Wales but it is expected that applicants would bring 
an appeal in a magistrates’ court in the area in which they or the premises are situated.  

13.3  An appeal has to be commenced by the appellant giving a notice of appeal to the 
designated officer for the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with the 
day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision which is 
being appealed.  

13.4  The licensing authority will always be a respondent to the appeal, but in cases where a 
favourable decision has been made for an applicant, licence holder, club or premises 
user against the representations of a responsible authority or any other person, or the 
objections of the chief officer of police, the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement), or 
local authority exercising environmental health functions, the holder of the premises or 
personal licence or club premises certificate or the person who gave an interim authority 
notice or the premises user will also be a respondent to the appeal, and the person who 
made the relevant representation or gave the objection will be the appellants.  

13.5  Where an appeal has been made against a decision of the licensing authority, the 
licensing authority will in all cases be the respondent to the appeal and may call as a 
witness a responsible authority or any other person who made representations against 
the application, if it chooses to do so. For this reason, the licensing authority should 
consider keeping responsible authorities and others informed of developments in relation 
to appeals to allow them to consider their position. Provided the court considers it 
appropriate, the licensing authority may also call as witnesses any individual or body that 
they feel might assist their response to an appeal.  

 
Licensing policy statements and Section 182 guidance 
 
13.8  In hearing an appeal against any decision made by a licensing authority, the magistrates’ 

court will have regard to that licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy and this 
Guidance. However, the court would be entitled to depart from either the statement of 
licensing policy or this Guidance if it considered it was justified to do so because of the 
individual circumstances of any case. In other words, while the court will normally 
consider the matter as if it were “standing in the shoes” of the licensing authority, it would 
be entitled to find that the licensing authority should have departed from its own policy or 
the Guidance because the particular circumstances would have justified such a decision.  

13.9  In addition, the court is entitled to disregard any part of a licensing policy statement or 
this Guidance that it holds to be ultra vires the 2003 Act and therefore unlawful. The 
normal course for challenging a statement of licensing policy or this Guidance should be 
by way of judicial review, but where it is submitted to an appellate court that a statement 
of policy is itself ultra vires the 2003 Act and this has a direct bearing on the case before 
it, it would be inappropriate for the court, on accepting such a submission, to compound 
the original error by relying on that part of the statement of licensing policy affected.  

 
Fundamental principles of the Statement of Policy 
 
14.12  Statements of policies should make clear that:  

• licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by 
qualifying clubs and at temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act; and  

• conditions attached to various authorisations will be focused on matters which 
are within the control of individual licence holders and others with relevant 
authorisations, i.e. the premises and its vicinity.  

Page 70Agenda Item 7



 
14.13  A statement of policy should also make clear that licensing law is not the primary 

mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals 
once they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct 
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or authorisation 
concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such control and licensing law will always 
be part of a holistic approach to the management of the evening and night-time 
economy in town and city centres.  

Page 71 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72


	Agenda
	at 2.30 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

	4 Minutes of Previous Sub-Committees held on 2 and 30 July 2020
	Minutes , 30/07/2020 Licensing Sub-Committee

	6 Rules of Procedure
	7 APPLICATION BY DARTFORD SOCIAL CLUB LTD FOR A VARIATION TO THE CLUB PREMISES CERTIFCATE HELD AT 59 LOWFIELD STREET, DARTFORD, KENT DA1 1HP
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	Appendix A - Current Licence
	Appendix B - Application
	Appendix C - EH Objection
	From: Gloria Minshull >  Sent: 18 May 2022 10:57 To: Licensing <  Subject: 22/00154/LACPC - Application to Vary Permitted Hours - DH/CPC/012/2005 - Dartford Social Club Ltd, 59 Lowfield Street, Dartford, Kent DA1 1HP Importance: High

	Appendix D - Resident Objection -  redacted for Internet
	Appendix E - QBit Objection
	Appendix F - LOCAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
	Appendix G - Secretary of State Guidance




